

# Request for Quotations (RFQ) For Online Recruitment Platform PR23-5057

Issued: December 16, 2022 Date Due: January 31, 2023

# **Table of Contents**

		Page
Section	I Introduction	3
A.	Request for Quotation	3
В.	Product Features and Customer Service Offerings Desired from the Vendo	
C.	Minimum Vendor Requirements	
D.	Cost Proposal/Pricing list	
E.	Quotation Format	4
F.	Submission instructions and timetable	4
G.	Evaluation criteria	5
Н.	Prohibition on Lobbying	6
l.	Conflict of Interest	6
J.	Public information	7
K.	Cone of silence	7
L.	Notice of Award	7
Section	II Terms, Conditions and Other Requirements	8
A.	Vendor Award and Agreement	8
В.	Addenda	8
C.	Acceptance/Rejection of Quotations and Waiver of Irregularities	9
D.	Tax Exemptions	9
E.	Legal Requirements	9
F.	Disqualification	10
G.	No Discrimination	10
Н.	Cost of Preparation of Quotation	11
I.	Default	11
J.	Public Records, Trade Secrets, and Confidential Materials	11
K.	Dispute resolution/protest	
Exhibit	A: Certification Affidavit	16
Exhibit	B: IRS Form W-9	Separate Link on website

# **RFQ for Social-Emotional Support Kits**

# **SECTION I. Introduction**

#### A. Request for Quotations

The Early Learning Coalition of Broward County, Inc. (the COALITION) seeking quotations and product demonstrations from one or more qualified vendor(s) to provide access to an online employee recruitment platform that will help the COALITION to post open positions and find, screen, manage and hire 10 to 50 qualified candidates annually. This product/service is being procured through an RFQ to select the best qualified responsible vendor(s) through an open, competitive process to select a vendor that is most advantageous to the COALITION, taking price, service value and all other factors into consideration. The COALITION seeks to contract for these products/services for an initial period of three months through June 30, 2023, with the possibility of up to four (4) additional one-year renewals thereafter.

The source of funding for the requested services is as follows:

Total	100%
Local:	7%
State:	25%
Federal:	68%

## B. Product Features and Customer Service Offerings Desired from the Vendor

- 1. High visibility for COALITION job postings
- 2. Ability to target traffic, encourage diversity and look for foreign language skills
- 3. User friendly, easily navigable, and engaging applicant interface
- 4. Automated results filter to eliminate robot or nuisance applications
- 5. User friendly and flexible employer customization options
  - i. Employer branding and company information on postings
  - ii. Tools for easy on-line viewing, organizing and managing applications
  - iii. Ability to download applications for viewing, organizing and managing offline
  - iv. Customizable analytics and reports
  - v. Robust administrative Interface for setting role-based access.
- 6. Ability to interface with other platforms (such as Outlook or an in-house CRM) through an API
- 7. Clear service plan and a single point of contact for employer customer service
- 8. Responsive, effective and reliable customer service and maintenance support.

# C. Minimum Vendor Requirements:

• Qualified, able and available to provide the product and services requested.

- Eligible to receive Federal and State funding as required by law, regulation, Coalition funder contracts, program guidance and COALITION policy
- Signed Certification Affidavit attesting to compliance with Federal vendor eligibility requirements
- Completed IRS form W-9
- Certified Minority Owned or Veteran Owned Businesses (Preferred)

# D. Cost Proposal/Pricing List:

- Must include all potential costs and fees including, but not limited to:
  - ✓ Variable Costs Dependent on Usage
  - ✓ Fixed Monthly Fees
  - ✓ Costs to add or discontinue service options
  - ✓ Costs for additional features available
  - ✓ Contract Cancellation or Change Fees
  - ✓ Annual price escalations, if any
  - ✓ Any Other Costs

## E. Quotation Format

- a. Completed and signed Affidavit Form (Exhibit A).
- b. List or description of vendor services and features, vendor brochures, weblinks or other documentation that demonstrate technical capabilities of vendor products with included features or services. (Product demonstration or Vendor interviews may be requested at COALITION discretion)
- c. Comprehensive, Detailed Cost Proposal or Price List
- d. Signed form W-9

The Coalition may request additional or supplemental documentation, affidavits or other written evidence that your Applicant has all of the necessary certifications, licenses and/or approvals or authorizations to deliver and/or provide the commodities and/or services stated in the RFQ.

#### F. Submission Instructions and Timetable

#### 1. Submission

Each entity or person who responds to this RFQ ("Vendor") shall submit copies or links to brochures or websites with a product description and a signed Cost Proposal and Certification Affidavit (collectively referred to as a "Proposal") included as Attachment A. of this solicitation no later than 12:00 pm on January 13, 2023: Quotations should be emailed to RFQ@elcbroward.org and include a contact name and email for correspondence. It is the

responsibility of the Applicant to ensure that the proposal arrives on time at the right location. Proposals and modifications to Proposals received after the time and date specified herein for Proposal submission will not be considered by the COALITION. Submissions by facsimile or delivery will not be accepted. Late Proposals will not be considered.

#### 2. Timeline

Dates advertised/Available	December 16, 2022 to January 13, 2022
Deadline for receipt of written questions	January 10, 2023 12:00 PM
Answers to all questions posted on www.elcbroward.org	January 10, 2023 by 5:00 PM
Deadline for electronic submission of quotations (no exceptions)	January 31, 2023 12:00 PM
Interviews and product demonstration, if applicable	February 10, 2023 TBD
Award Notice Posted	February 17, 2023

#### **G.** Evaluation Criteria

The COALITION's Rating Committee will evaluate the quotations and any brochures, product descriptions, website demos or other information available about the product to make recommendations for selection in accordance with established evaluation criteria. The Rating Committee may request a demonstration of product capabilities. The Committee will select a successful Vendor who best conforms to the RFQ and represents the best value to the COALITION. The COALITION will evaluate the responses, announce the award of the RFQ, and issue a purchase order to access services under the successful vendor's existing Florida State Term contract without discussions with any vendor submitting a bid in response to this RFQ. Therefore, a Vendor's response to this RFQ should contain the Vendor's best terms from a price and technical standpoint in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Florid State Term Contract the Vendor has with the State of Florida. If agreement on terms of service cannot be reached with the selected Vendor, COALITION shall negotiate with their next selection(s) until an agreement is reached and a purchase order is accepted by the Vendor. At any time during the negotiations, COALITION may modify the choice of a selected Vendor if determined to be in the best interest of COALITION. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the COALITION reserves the right to conduct discussions with Vendors if later determined by the COALITION to be necessary.

COALITION further reserves the right before recommending any award to inspect the

facilities, agency, and financial condition or take any other action necessary to determine the ability to perform the work in accordance with specifications, terms and conditions.

The evaluation will be based on the following criteria:

Technical Capabilities	50%
Service Plan	10%
Cost Proposal	40%
Total	100%

# H. Prohibition on Lobbying

The Early Learning Coalition (COALITION) shall not award a contract to an organization, person, or entity which has hired a person, whether directly or indirectly, or consented to or acquiesced in the employment of a person, whose principal responsibilities are to lobby a member of the COALITION on behalf of the organization, person, or entity which seeks to become a Vendor to the COALITION. Subject to the foregoing, an officer, director, official, principal, or bona fide employee of an organization, person or entity seeking to become a Vendor may engage in lobbying without payment of any compensation or reimbursement of expenses for such lobbying, whether directly or indirectly. No monies paid by the COALITION shall be used by a Vendor agency to hire a lobbyist or to supplant any funds which would allow for the funding of a lobbyist. Any Vendor or lobbyist for Vendor, paid or unpaid, is prohibited from having any private communication concerning any procurement process or any response to a procurement process with any COALITION staff or rating committee members after the issuance of a Vendor opportunity and until completion of contract or purchase order. A proposal from any organization will be disqualified if the Vendor or a lobbyist for the Vendor, paid or unpaid, violates this condition of the procurement process.

#### I. Conflict of Interest

All Vendors must disclose the name of any officer, director or agency who is also an employee or Board member of the COALITION. All respondents must disclose the name of any COALITION employee or Board member who owns, directly or indirectly, any interest in the respondent's business or any of its branches. Such disclosure must be submitted as a cover letter included with the Quotation Form, no later than the proposal deadline.

#### J. Public Information

All submitted Proposals, and information included therein or attached thereto shall become public record in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, unless excluded under RFQ, Section III.G, (Public Records, Trade Secrets). The only contact person with respect to any or all aspects of this RFQ is Christine Klima, Chief Administrative Officer; RFQ@ELCbroward.org.

# K. Cone Of Silence - Limitations On Contacting COALITION Personnel/Others.

Effective as of the issuance of this RFQ and ending at the end of the 72-hour period following the posting of the COALITION's Notice of Intended Award, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and state holidays, respondents to this RFQ or persons acting on their behalf may not contact, and/or discuss, with any member of the COALITION's Board, Rating Committee, Evaluation Team or COALITION Staff, any matter that pertains to this RFQ, except in writing with the person identified in **Section I. K (Public Information) of this RFQ**, or at any publicly noticed meetings of the COALITION during which this RFQ will be discussed, or as otherwise provided in the solicitation documents. Violation of this provision may be grounds for rejecting a response.

#### L. Notice of Award

The COALITION anticipates awarding multiple purchase orders to multiple Vendors whose Price Quote is determined, in writing, to be the most advantageous to the COALITION, and children, and families of Broward County; taking into consideration the price, and the other criteria set forth in this RFQ. The COALITION will electronically post a Notice of Intended Award at the COALITION's website following the COALITION Board's selection of the Successful Vendor. If the Notice of Intended Award is delayed, in lieu of posting the Notice of Intended Award, the COALITION will post a notice of the delay and a revised date for posting the Notice of Intended Award.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# Section II: Terms, Conditions and other Requirements

# A. Vendor Award and Agreement

<u>Vendor Agreement:</u> An agreement will be negotiated after the award for any work to be performed as a result of this RFQ. The RFQ, the Proposal, and the resulting agreement will constitute the complete Agreement between Vendor and the Coalition. The expected agreement term will be for one (1) year with up to two (2) one-year renewals subject to Coalition approval. The commencement of the term or the term itself may be extended or reduced depending on the needs of the Coalition.

Breach of RFQ and Cancellation of Award: In the event any of the provisions of the RFP are violated by the successful Vendor during the RFQ process or subsequent to award, but prior to execution of a contract between the Coalition and the successful Vendor, the CEO, or their designee may give written notice to the successful Vendor stating the deficiencies if such deficiencies are capable of being corrected pursuant to the terms and conditions of the RFQ. Unless the deficiencies are corrected within ten (10) days, a recommendation will be made to the Coalition for immediate cancellation of the award of the RFQ. Upon cancellation of the award of the RFQ, the Coalition may pursue any and all legal remedies as provided herein and by law.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Coalition reserves the right to terminate the award of the RFP or reject a proposal without cause at any time (including but not limited to subsequent to the execution of any contract arising from the award of the RFQ with the successful Vendor) with written notice to the successful or offending Vendor, whichever is applicable, if said Vendor has violated the terms and conditions of the RFQ. If said contract should be terminated without cause, the Coalition will be relieved of all obligations under said contract. The Coalition will only be required to pay to the Vendor that amount of the contract scope of work actually performed to the date of termination.

The successful Vendor will have the option to terminate the award of the RFQ without cause, upon 15 days' prior written notice to the CEO. Cancellation of the award of the RFQ by the successful Vendor may result in rem

## B. Addenda

The COALITION has the absolute right to cancel, amend, modify, supplement or clarify this RFQ at any time in its sole discretion. If any revisions become necessary or appropriate, as determined in the sole discretion of the COALITION, the COALITION will post the same on its website. Any addendum issued by the COALITION will include a receipt acknowledgment, which must be executed and submitted to the COALITION along with the Quote on the date sealed Quotes are due to the COALITION. All Vendors should contact the COALITION's contact person for this solicitation as set forth in Section I. H (Public Information) of this RFQ, in addition, to reviewing the website, before the RFQ deadline to ascertain whether any addenda have been issued. Failure to do so could result in a determination that the Proposal is non-responsive.

# C. Acceptance/Rejection of Quotations and Waiver Of Irregularities

The COALITION reserves the right, at its sole discretion to reject any and all Proposals, and/or to re-advertise, to waive any minor defects, irregularities, informalities, or technicalities therein, to negotiate contract terms with the Successful Vendor, to disregard minor non-conforming or non-responsive parts of a Proposal, or to accept any Proposal which, in the COALITION's sole judgment will best serve its interests and the interests of the children and families of Broward County.

The COALITION may supplement, amend, modify and/or expand the solicitation requirements, request a clarification or other information, accept Quotes from one or more Vendors, in whole or in part, award only a portion of this solicitation, and award this solicitation to more than one Vendor. The COALITION reserves the right, before awarding the contract, to require Vendor(s) to submit evidence of qualifications or any other information COALITION may deem necessary. The COALITION further reserves the right to cancel this RFQ solicitation at any time without any liability and to cancel the award of any contract at any time before execution of said contract by all parties without any liability to the COALITION.

The COALITION reserves the right to award more than one contract for any area, combining the offering, or parts thereof, of one or more Vendors. In consideration of the COALITION's evaluation of submitted Quotes, the Vendor, by submitting its Quotes, expressly waives any claim to damages, of any kind whatsoever, in the event the COALITION exercises its rights provided for in this RFQ.

# D. Tax Exemptions

COALITION is exempt from federal and state taxes for tangible personal property, sales taxes, and intangible taxes. Vendor(s) doing business with COALITION will not be exempted from paying sales tax to their suppliers for materials to fulfill contractual obligations with the COALITION, nor will any Vendor be authorized to use the COALITION's tax exemption number in securing such materials.

#### E. Legal Requirements

It shall be the responsibility of the Vendor to be knowledgeable and comply with all applicable federal, state, county and local laws, ordinances, rules, ordinances, regulations and/or orders of any public authority or agency which includes but is not limited to the COALITION's most current funding agreement ("Grant Agreement") that may, in any manner, affect the items covered in this RFQ. Lack of knowledge by the Vendor(s) regarding any laws or the Grant Agreement will in no way be a cause for relief from responsibility. The Vendor shall ensure that it, and all of its contractors and subcontractors of any tier, shall be properly licensed and certified continuously throughout the duration of all work performed and services provided in accordance with the resulting contract. All such licensing and certification shall be at the sole cost of each contractor and subcontractor. Within three (3) business days of a request, the Vendor shall furnish to the

COALITION copies of any licenses, permits or certifications required to comply with any law, rule, or other requirement.

# F. Disqualification

The Proposal and the Vendor shall be disqualified if:

- The Vendor or affiliate has been placed in the discriminatory, convicted or scrutinized company vendor list pursuant to Sections 287.133, 287.134, or 287.135 of the Florida Statutes.
- 2. The Vendor or affiliate has not complied with an official order of any agency of the State of Florida or the United States Department of Labor to repay disallowed costs incurred during its conduct or projects or services.
- The Vendor or affiliate has failed to perform any contractual obligations, whether past or present, with the COALITION in a manner satisfactory to the COALITION; or has failed to correct unsatisfactory performance, whether past or present, to the satisfaction of the COALITION.
- 4. The Vendor or affiliate had a contract terminated by the COALITION, by any other COALITION or Florida state agency for cause.
- 5. The Vendor or affiliate or any of its staff have participated in the development of the RFQ documents for this Solicitation.
- 6. The Vendor or affiliate fails to comply with the mandatory requirements as set forth in this RFQ.
- 7. The Vendor or affiliate or agent of the Vendor or any of its staff make contact in violation of the provisions of the Cone of Silence as set forth in this RFQ.

#### G. No Discrimination

The COALITION, in accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, ensures that any contract entered into pursuant to this RFQ, minority business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit a Quote and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, creed, color, sexual orientation, disability, age or national origin in consideration of award with regard to but not limited to the following: employment practices, rates of pay or other compensation methods, and training selection.

# H. Cost of Preparation of Quotation

The COALITION is not liable for any costs incurred by Vendor in responding to this Request for Quotation.

#### I. Default

In the event that the Vendor should breach the RFQ or the resulting Purchase Order upon any award to a successful Vendor, whichever is applicable, such breach shall be considered a default thereunder and the COALITION reserves the right to seek remedies in law and/or in equity. Default will also result in removal from the applicable federal, state, and local bidders/respondents list for a period of three (3) years.

## J. Public Records, Trade Secret and Confidential Materials

Article 1, Section 24 of the Florida Constitution and Chapter 119, Fla. Stat., guarantees every person access to all public records. All information contained within each Proposal submitted to the COALITION pursuant to this RFQ is part of the public domain, consistent with Chapter, 119, Florida Statutes. The Vendor must invoke the exemptions to disclosure provided by law in their Proposals, by providing the specific statutory authority for the claimed exemption, identifying the data or other materials to be protected, and state the reason, in writing, why the exclusion from public disclosure is necessary. All Proposals will be open for public inspection in accordance with Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, except for any information that qualifies as exempt information under Florida Statutes, and which has been identified by the Vendor. The COALITION will attempt to afford protection from disclosure of any trade secret as defined in Section 812.081, Florida Statutes, where Vendor identifies it as such in its response to this RFQ, to the extent permitted under Section 815.04, Florida Statutes.

Any prospective Vendor acknowledges, however, that the protection afforded by Section 815.04, Florida Statutes, is incomplete, and it is hereby agreed by the Vendor and the COALITION that no right or remedy for damages arises from any disclosure. Vendor agrees that no right or remedy shall be had against the COALITION that arises from any disclosure made by COALITION herein, in good faith, pursuant to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. Further, Vendor agrees that it shall indemnify, defend, and hold the COALITION harmless from and against any losses, expenses, liabilities, costs, (including court costs and reasonable attorney's fees and costs), claims or actions by a third party that relates to Vendor's claimed exemptions herein.

If the proposal includes material which is deemed a trade secret (as defined by Section 812.081, FS) or other confidential material exempt from the provisions of Chapter 119, FS, which the Vendor does not wish to become public record, the following statement should be included in the proposal:

"Trade Secrets" as defined by Section 812.081, Florida Statutes, or other confidential materials contained on applicable pages of this proposal shall not be used or disclosed, except for evaluation purposes. However, if a contract is awarded as a result the RFQ, the COALITION shall have the right to use or disclose the information designated as trade secrets or confidential to the extent provided in the contract or law, whichever is applicable. This restriction does not limit the COALITION's right to use or disclose the information designated as trade secrets or confidential which is obtained from another source.

Any exemption claimed will be limited to the pertinent data/documents and must be supported by a state or federal statutory exemption. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, nothing contained in the proposal shall be deemed or interpreted to restrict or prevent the COALITION from complying with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 119. Florida Statutes, when material is incorrectly identified or does not statutorily qualify as a trade secret or confidential information. By submitting a Proposal, the Vendor covenants not to sue the COALITION and waives any claim against the COALITION arising under Chapter 119, Florida Statutes or in connection with or as a result of any disclosures by the COALITION in connection herewith.

The COALITION further states that any products or services utilized or created by the Successful Vendor to deliver the services or perform the work as set forth in the RFQ will be subject to the terms, conditions & requirements of Section R, Exhibit I. of the Grant Agreement.

# **K.** Dispute Resolution/Protest

## 1. Protest Process

A Vendor may dispute or protest an award of the RFQ by utilizing the following guidelines. By submitting a Proposal in response to this RFQ, the Vendor waives the ability to pursue any disputes or other proceedings pursuant to Chapter 120, Florida Statutes and shall comply with the following COALITION's Protest Process for this RFQ as stated below:

a. A Notice of Intent to Protest, after award, must be submitted within three (3) business days after the posting of the Notice of Intended Award. Failure to timely file a Notice of Intent Protest before the award of a contract to a Successful Vendor shall forever bar the protesting Vendor from raising any issues related to, concerning, or arising from the RFQ (including the COALITION's handling of the RFQ) after award of the contract to the Successful Vendor and no further action will be taken by the COALITION on the Notice of Intent to Award.

- b. The COALITION shall contact the protesting Vendor and work to resolve the protest by mutual agreement between the COALITION and the protesting Vendor within five (5) business days of receipt of the written Notice of Intent to Protest ("Resolution Period"). If the Notice of Intent to Protest is not informally resolved between the protesting Vendor and the COALITION within the Resolution Period, the protesting Vendor may file a formal written Notice of Protest with the COALITION's Chief Executive Officer describing, in detail, the following: (i) the reason(s) and nature of the protest (ii) the violation, if any, of any applicable laws and/or terms and conditions of the RFQ and (iii) the proposed resolution of the protest. A Notice of Protest must be forward to the COALITION within three (3) business days of the last day of the Resolution Period. The Vendor shall also forward at the time of the filing of the Notice of Protest all relevant materials, documents data or other information to the Dispute Resolution Committee that the Vendor believes supports its protest for review and consideration. Failure to forward such supporting documents or information will result in said documents or information not being considered by the Dispute Resolution Committee in evaluating the Vendor's protest. Failure to timely file a Notice of Protest within the time period stated herein shall forever bar the protesting Vendor from raising any issues related to, concerning or arising from the RFQ (including the COALITION's handling of the RFQ) and no further action will be taken by the COALITION on the Notice of Protest.
- C. Within five business (5) days of the submission of a timely Notice of Protest ("Hearing Period"), the COALITION shall convene a committee meeting composed of COALITION staff and/or, if available, board member(s) to hear the formal protest of the protesting Vendor ("Dispute Resolution Committee") and recommend a course of action to the COALITION'S CEO. If board members are not available due during the Hearing Period, the Dispute Resolution Committee may consist solely of COALITION staff. The protesting Vendor or its representative will be required to attend scheduled committee meeting, or its formal protest will be dismissed by the Dispute Resolution Committee and no further action will be taken on said protest. The COALITION's legal representation may be present to advise the Dispute Resolution Committee regarding hearing procedures and legal issues. The Dispute Resolution Committee reserves the right to invite and/or accept information from third parties (including, but not limited those parties that may be affected by the recommendations or decisions of the Dispute Resolution Committee or the COALITION'S CEO).

The Dispute Resolution Committee will hear the arguments or statements of the Vendor, its witnesses (if applicable), as well as any other parties that have been directly noticed or

requested via U.S. Mail, hand delivery or email by the committee to attend the committee meeting. The Dispute Resolution Committee will have two (2) business days from the day of the committee meeting to forward a recommendation to the CEO or their acting designee (if CEO is unavailable) regarding the Vendor's protest. The Committee, at its sole discretion, may extend the time to forward its recommendation to the CEO or their acting designee (if CEO is unavailable), however, in no event shall such time frame extend beyond (5) business days from the day of the committee meeting.

c. The CEO or its acting designee (if CEO is unavailable) shall have three (3) business days from the receipt of the recommendation of the Dispute Resolution Committee to make a final written decision regarding the Vendor's protest. If it is determined that the solicitation or award is in violation of law, the solicitation or award shall be canceled or revised. If it is determined that the solicitation or award should be upheld, the Chief Executive Officer shall promptly issue a decision in writing stating the reason for the action with a copy furnished to the protesting Vendor. The decision of the Chief Executive Officer shall be final and conclusive as to the COALITION and to the protesting Vendor. The CEO, at its sole discretion, may extend the time for final determination by written notice to the protesting Vendor however, in no event shall such time frame extend beyond (5) business days from receipt of the final recommendation of the Dispute Resolution Committee.

Nothing in this policy is intended to affect the power of the COALITION'S Board to settle actions pending before the courts. In the event of a timely protest, the COALITION shall not proceed further with the solicitation or with the pending award of the contract until a ruling is made on the protest unless the COALITION, with the advice of the COALITION's attorney, makes a determination that the award of a contract resulting from the RFQ, without delay, is necessary to protect the substantial or financial interests of the COALITION. If, in the sole determination of the COALITION, that a dispute may result in a delay or interruption of services to clients or operations of the COALITION, it reserves the right to contract with a contractor of choice on an interim basis to ensure the delivery of service or continuance of operations until the protest dispute is resolved. The disputed dollar amount will be earmarked until the protest is resolved. All other funds shall be available for distribution.

ALL NOTICES, PROTESTS AND FILING OF INFORMATION OR SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS AS STATED IN THIS SECTION II. K MUST BE SENT TO AT THE ADDRESS AND CONTACT PERSON LISTED IN SECTION I OF THIS RFQ,

2. Bond

- a. Any Vendor who files a protest shall post with COALITION, at the time of filing the formal written protest, a bond secured by an acceptable surety in Florida, payable to COALITION in an amount equal to one percent (1%) of the COALITION's estimate of the dollar value of the proposed contract, which bond shall be conditioned upon the payment of all costs which may be adjudged against the Vendor in which the action is brought.
- b. If, after completion of the protest process and the COALITION prevails, it shall be entitled to recover all costs and charges associated with attorney's fees. Upon payment of such costs and charges by the person protesting the decision, or intended decision or contract award, the bond shall be returned to the firm.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

# **EXHIBIT A**

## **CERTIFICATION AFFIDAVIT**

## **DIRECTIONS:** BY ATTESTING TO THIS FORM, THE VENDOR AGREES TO COMPLY WITH ALL SECTIONS

#### 1. FLORIDA STATE TERM VENDOR CONTRACT STATUS

Vendor certifies that the Vendor is an active Florida State Term Contract Vendor for the services and/or commodities requested in this RFQ with an active contract and that the active contract number is provided below. A "Florida State Term Contract Vendor" is a vendor who has an executed agreement with the State of Florida, is available to deliver services for state agencies and is listed on the Department of Management Services website as a contracted state vendor. Florida State Term Contract Vendor will also have an assigned vendor number from the State of Florida and will have a copy of their master agreement with the State of Florida.

#### 2. APPLICATION ACCURACY

Vendor certifies that all facts, figures, and representations made in the proposal are true and correct. The filing of this proposal has been authorized by the contracting entity and I have been duly authorized to act as the representative of the organization in connection with this proposal. I also agree to follow all Terms, Conditions, and applicable federal and state statutes.

#### 3. PROHIBITION ON LOBBYING

Vendors are hereby advised, and agree to comply with the Early Learning Coalition of Broward County's ("Coalition") adopted prohibition on lobbying:

The Coalition shall not award funding to an organization, person or entity which has hired a person, whether directly or indirectly, who receives payment or economic consideration for the purpose of lobbying. Additionally, the Coalition shall not award funding to an organization, person, or entity which has consented to or acquiesced in the employment of a person whose principal responsibilities are to lobby a member of the Coalition on behalf of the organization, person, or entity which seeks funding from the Coalition. Subject to the foregoing, an officer, director, official, principal or bona fide employee of an organization, person, or entity seeking funding may engage in lobbying without payment of any compensation or reimbursement of expenses for such lobbying, whether directly or indirectly.

No monies granted by the Coalition shall be used by a provider agency to hire a lobbyist or to supplant any funds which would allow for the funding of a lobbyist.

Any Vendor or lobbyist, paid or unpaid, for an Vendor is prohibited from having any private communication concerning any procurement process or any response to a procurement process with any Coalition Board Member or the CEO <u>after the</u> issuance of a funding opportunity and until completion of contract award. A proposal from any organization will be disqualified when the Vendor of a lobbyist, paid or unpaid, for the Vendor violates this condition of the procurement process.

#### 4. CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Vendors are hereby advised, and agree to comply with the Coalition's adopted conflict of interest regulations:

All Vendors must disclose the name of any officer, director or agency who is also an employee of the Coalition. All Vendors must disclose the name of any Coalition employee who owns, directly or indirectly, any interest in the Vendors' business or any of its branches. Such disclosure must be submitted as a cover letter included with the Application for Funding, addressed to the Coalition Chair, no later than the proposal deadline.

#### 5. AGENCY CERTIFICATION

- I, the undersigned Vendor, hereby attest that the following policies, procedures, regulations, and documentation are in effect:
  - a. Affirmative Action Policy
  - b. Certified Minority Business Enterprise (if applicable)
  - c. Small Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Policy (if applicable)
  - d. Americans with Disabilities Act Policy
  - e. Drug Free Workplace Policy

#### 5. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME AFFIDAVIT

- a. I understand that a "public entity crime as defined in Paragraph 287.133(1)(g), Florida Statutes means a violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of business with any entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or with the United States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust, fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.
- b. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.1 33(1)(b), Florida Statutes means a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July, 1989, as a result of a jury verdict, non-jury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.
- c. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.1C3(a)(a), Florida Statutes means:
  - A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
  - An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who has been convicted of public entity crime. The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management of affiliate.
  - The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another person, or pooling of equipment of income among persons when not for fair market value under an arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person. A person who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.
- d. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.1330) (e), Florida Statutes means any natural person or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a binding contract and which bids or applies to bids on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity. The

- term "person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in management of an entity.
- e. Based on information and belief, the statement which I have marked below is true in relation to the entity submitting this sworn statement. (Please indicate which statement applies).
- Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of the entity, nor any affiliate of the entity have been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989.
- The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of the officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in management of the entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime subsequent to July 1, 1989, AND (Please indicate which additional statement applies.)
- h. There has been proceeding concerning the conviction before a hearing officer of the state of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing officer did not place the person or affiliate on the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of the final order).
- The person or affiliate was placed on the convicted vendor list. There has been a subsequent proceeding before a hearing officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings. The final order entered by the hearing officer determined that it was in the public interest to remove the person or affiliate from the convicted vendor list. (Please attach a copy of the final order).
- n

<li>j. The person or affiliate has not been play by or pending with the Department of</li>	aced on the convicted vendor list. (Please describe any action taken General Services).
	OR NAME AND ADDRESS:
NOTE: AS EVIDENCED BY MY SIGNATURE BECONDITIONS STATED HEREIN:	LOW, I UNDERSTAND AND WILL COMPLY WITH ALL TERMS AND
Type Authorized Official's Name	Authorized Official's Title
Authorized Official's Signature FEDERAL EMPLOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER	Date
	Page
	18